[Caroline] Ethel Martin (later Frimston), 1880–1940  [Draft 28. 3. 20]
Ethel Martin, Liverpool painter and sculptor, was born at 18 Strand Street, Liverpool on 19 June 1880, the fifth and youngest child of William Martin, a Cornish-born flag manufacturer, and his wife Ann (née Wilkinson, m.1864): she was baptised on 17 October 1880 at Liverpool’s Mount Pleasant Wesleyan Methodist Chapel. She appears to have become a student at (then) University College Liverpool's Applied Art Department, known as ‘The Art Sheds’. She is listed as an art student in the 1901 census but was one of a group who in 1905 set up the Sandon Terrace Studios (later the Sandon Studios Society) as an alternative art school, based at 9 Sandon Terrace, Duke Street. The Society then leased studio and social space from 1907 in Liverpool’s former 18th-century Blue C
oat School building, then vacant and threatened by demolition
. Ethel Martin was a member of the Society’s General Committee from at least as early as 1909, as was Charles Reilly, Professor of Architecture at Liverpool University from 1904 (after it gained its charter in 1903) and one of those who helped save the Bluecoat building by relocating the architectural school into the larger part of it, also in 1909. It is also fairly clear from Reilly’s memoirs that he knew the attractive Miss Martin well as the (unnamed) ‘dark handsome young sculptress’ who was renting a studio there to which he needed access as part of the move, and whom he also later noted as a ‘suffragette sculptress’ (Scaffolding in the Sky, 1938, pp 134-5, 141). 
She was also involved locally in that movement (including at the Bluecoat) and apparently a keen participant in the Sandon's elaborate fancy dress parties there. Such events were reportedly presided over by a copy of her bust of the Revd Charles Garrett, modelled for the Central Hall, Renshaw: it was (facetiously) called ‘the patron saint of our dances’, given that Garrett was notable for having ‘embraced the principles of total abstinence at the age of fifteen’.
The Sandon Society’s involvement at the Bluecoat in effect developed it into the first arts centre in the UK, established as the Bluecoat Society of Arts in 1927 after twenty years of previous related work. The first Sandon exhibition took place there in 1908, including drawings and paintings by Martin, who became a member of the Liverpool Academy in 1906. It also included a work by Monet, possibly one of the first by him seen outside London, and by Augustus John who was one of the Sandon’s early ‘visitors’ (the others were Robert Anning Bell, R. Llewellyn Rathbone and David Muirhead). Martin also exhibited in Sandon shows in 1910, 1911 and 1914. Of these the 1911 post-impressionist show (a visiting one organized by Roger Fry) was considered groundbreaking, showing works by Picasso, Van Gogh, Gauguin and Matisse, but also adding local artists. Martin’s contributions were a painting of ‘Boats’, ‘Urn from Dove Park’ (plaster) and ‘The Sphinx’, a bronze commissioned for Charles Reilly’s new Students’ Union building at the University. In 1916 Martin’s work, including an interior, a flower piece and several ‘hill scenes’, were praised at the Society of Modern Painters exhibition in Manchester (Liverpool Echo, 20 May). In 1930 a ‘scratchy’ watercolour by her (as ‘Miss Frimston’) exhibited at the Merseyside Art Circle show at the Rushworth Galley, Basnette
 Street was described as ‘a little alarming, but highly interesting’ (ibid., 17 Jan. 1930). A passing reference to her in relation to her nephew, the architect John Bernard Shaw in 1933, refers to her as ‘of Neston, a well known local sculptor’ (ibid. 19 July 1933). 
Whatever the nature of her friendship with Reilly, Martin married at Toxteth Park in the last quarter of 1910 to Edward Noel Frimston (1880/1–1960), a well-to-do Liverpool cotton broker. After her marriage she appears as Ethel Frimston, for example on the General and House Committees of the Sandon Society in 1910 and 1911 and in exhibition contexts (including those cited above). 
The couple had two children, John David and Joan Ann (later Davies, 1921–2013). Ethel remained long connected with the Sandon and Bluecoat Societies and in 1932 gave a talk at the Bluecoat with her friend and Sandon socialite member, Maud Budden, about a visit they had made to Russia (Bisson, p. 177). She died at Neston in the Wirral on 1 August 1940. 

Ethel Martin knew, but was not related to, the Liverpool landscape painter William Alison Martin (1878–1936), who was also an ‘Arts Shed’ student and a member of the Sandon General Committee with her in 1909/10. He was son of William Martin (a clerk whose father was a Scottish stonemason) and his wife Emma, and was born at Oak Cottage, Hornspit Lane, Liverpool, on 19 August 1878. When baptised in St. Saviour's Church, Everton, on 18 September that year it was as William Albert Martin, but he clearly changed the second name in later use. He died at 10, South Castle Street, Liverpool, on 6 March 1936.
[Ellen] Ethel Martin, 1873–1969

Ellen Ethel Martin was born in Sevenoaks, Kent, on 4 September 1873.

From 1900 onwards, she was a regular exhibitor of portraits and landscapes, including at the Royal Academy (from Sevenoaks in 1900 and from Chelsea in 1904). In 1903 her works was part of a (badly reviewed) exhibition at the Doré Gallery in London which included her portrait of the writer Caroline Bray (1814–1905, see ODNB) now in the Herbert Art Gallery, Coventry. Early in 1905 she married in Chelsea to Ernest David [Emmanuel] Fridlander (b. 3 November 1870 – d. 1960), a painter and writer  who had also exhibited at the Doré show: his main work was a 1921 study of the Dutch painter Matthijs Maris  (1839–1917). Her RA entries that year and in  1911, 1912 and 1915 were as Mrs Fridlander and the 1939 Register shows her living with her husband at Haverfordwest in Pembrokeshire, along with Beatrix Fridlander, who was also an artist,  possibly his sister. She exhibited at the RA once again in 1946, her address then [but from when?] being 6, Prince Arthur Road, Hampstead, London, where she died on 11 January 1969, leaving an estate valued at £72,251.

Summarised from Art UK discussion on Ethel Martin Frimston’s Interior (possibly exh. Sandon/Bluecoat exhibition 1913) in the Williamson Art Gallery, Birkenhead and information in https://mybluecoat.org.uk/collections/sandon-studios-society/
there cited.
PvdM
�The school’s name was spelt Blue Coat, and only combined into one word later


�The threat of demolition was later


�There is a Basnett Street in Liverpool but not one spelt this way





